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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
WESTERN DIVISION

ZYNGA GAME NETWORK INC., a
Delawarc Corporation,

Plaintiff,

V.

PLAYERAUCTIONS.COM, an
unknown business entity,

Defendant.
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COMPLAINT FOR: '

(1) COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT
(17 US.C. § 501);

(2) CONTRIBUTORY COPYRIGHT
INFRINGEMENT;

(3) VICARIOUS COPYRIGHT
INFRINGEMENT;

(4) FALSE DESIGNATION OF
ORIGIN (15 U.S.C. § 1125(a));

(5) UNFAIR COMPETITION (CAL.
BUS. & PROF. CODE § 17200);

(6) STATE COMMON LAW
TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT;

(7) COMMON LAW PASSING OFF
AND UNFAIR COMPETITION;

(8) INTENTIONAL INTERFERENCE
WITH CONTRACTUAL
RELATIONS

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAI
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Plaintiff Zynga Game Network Inc. (*Zynga™} brings this Complaint against
defendant PLAYERAUCTIONS.COM (“Defendant™) for injunctive relief and
damages under the [aws of the United States and the State of California.

Nature of the Action

1. This is an action for direct, contributory, and vicarious copyright
infringement in viclaiion of the United States Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. § 501;
violation of the federal Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1125(a); violation of the California
statutory law of unfair competition, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200; California
common law trademark infringement, passing off and unfair competition; and for
intentional interference with contractual refations. |

The Yarties

2. Plaintiff Zynga is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of
the State of Delaware and has its principal place of business in San Francisco,
California.

3. On information and belief, Defendant PLAYERAUCTIONS.COM is an
unknown business entity, having its principal place of business in Los Angeles,
California. Zynga is unaware of the state of organization or incorporation, if any, of
Defendant PLAYERAUCTIONS.COM.

Jurisdiction and Venue

4. This action ariscs under the copyright laws of the United States, 17
U.S.C. § 101, et seq., the trademark laws of the United States, 5 U.S.C. § 1051, et
seq., particularly under 15 U.S.C. §§ 1125(a); state unfair competition law; the
commeon law of trademark infringement, passing off and unfair competition; and the
commeon law of intentional interference with contractual relations. This Court has
jurisdiction of the federal claims under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1338, and 15 U.S.C. §§
1116, 1121, and 1125, This Court has supplemental jurisdiction of the statc unfair
competition claims undec 28 U.S.C. § 1338(b), those claims being joined with a

substantial and related claim under the Trademark Laws of the United States, and
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supplemental jurisdiction of all of the statc law claims under 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a),
those claims being so related to the federal claims that they form part of the same case

or controversy and derive from a common nucleus of operative fact.

5. Venue is proper ia this district under 28 U.S.C, §§ 1391(b){2).

Factual Allegations

6. Zyngais the largest social gaming company, providing, inter alia, online
poker games, word games, board games, role playing games and party games,
including but not limited to Zynga Poker, Mafia Wars, YoVille, FarmVilie, Café
World, Vampires, Street Racing, Scramble and Word Twist. Zynga’s games are
available on Facebook, MySpace, Bebo, Hi5, Friendster, Tagped, Yahoo!, the iPhonc
and iPod Touch, among others.

7. Zynga’s games have been a runaway success. In July, 2008, Zynga had
over 1.3 million daily active users and 20 million registered users. As of January I,
2009, Zynga had over 75 million registered users. As of May 2009, Zynga had more
than 9.5 million daily users. Today, Zynga has over 100 million unique users playing,
its games each month.

3. Some of Zynga's most popular properties include Zynga Poker, Mafia
Wars, FarmVille and YoVille.

9.  Zynga Poker is a computerized version of the world famous Texas
Hoid’Em Poker game for use on wircless devices and computers.

10.  Zynga coined the trademark and service mark ZYNGA and has made use
of the mark ZYNGA in commerce since June 2007,

1. Zynga owns United States Federal Trademark Registration No. 3,685,749
for the mark ZYNGA in Intemnational Class 009 for downloadable computer game
soflware for use on wireless devices and computers, and International Class 041 for
entertainment services, namely providing on-line computer games. A true and correct
copy of federal Trademark Registration Ceriificate 3,685,749 is attached hereto as
Exhibit 1.
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12. Zynga Poker is the subject of registration VA00( 1649268 and
TXu00i611885 in the United Siates Copyright Office. True and correct records
reflecting these registrations are attached hereto as Exhibits 2 and 3.

13.  Mafia Wars is a computer game for use on wireless devices and
computers that allows users to start a virtual Mafia family with their friends and
compete to become the most powerful family.

14,  Zynga coined the service mark MAFIAWARS and has madc use of the
service mark MAFIA WARS in comunerce since September 2008. Zynga coined the
frademark MAFIAWARS and has made use of the trademark MAFIA WARS in
commerce since Aprii 2009.

15.  Zynga currently owns United States Federal Trademark Application
Serial No. 77772110 for the mark MAFIA WARS in International Class 009 for
downloadable computer game sofiware for use on wireless devices and computers,
and Internatiortal Class 041 for entertainment services, namely, providing on-line
computer games.

16. Mafia Wars is the subject of registration TX0006911230 in the United
States Copyright Office. A true and correct record reflecting this registration is
attached hereto as Exhibit 4.

17.  FarmVille is a computer game for use on wireless devices and computers
that allows users to virtually “farm” with their friends by planting crops and raising
farm animals.

18. Zynga coined the trademark and service mark FARMVILLE and has
made use of the mark in commerce since June 19, 2009.

19. Zynga currently owns United States Federal Trademark Application
Serial No. 77804837 for the word mark FARMVILLE in Intcmational Class 009 for
downloadable computer software for use on wireless devices and computers, and
International Class 041 for entertainment services, namely, providing on-line
computer games.
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20.  Zynga also owns United States Federal Trademark Application Serial No.
77798840 for the FARMVILLE BY ZYNGA design mark in [aternational Class 009
fot downloadable computer software for use on wireless devices and computers, and
International Class 041 for entertainment services, namely, providing on-line
corputer games,

21.  FarmVille is the subject of registrations TXu001610517 and
TX0006960171 in the United States Copyright Office. True and correct records
reflecting these registrations are attached hereto as Exhibits 5 and 6.

22. YoVille is a computer game for use on wireless devices and computers
that allows users to hang out with their friends in a virtual world, playing games and
chatting in the virtual world that users help to build.

23.  Zynga coined the trademark and service mark YOVILLE and has made
usc of the mark in commerce since May 5, 2008.

24.  Zynga currently owns United States Federal Trademark Application
Serial No. 77678316 for the mark YOVILLE in International Class 009 for
downloadable computer game software for use on wireless devices and computers,
and International Class 041 for entertainment services, namely, providing on-line
computer games.

25, The marks ZYNGA, MAFIA WARS, FARMVILLE, and YOVILLE (the
“Marks) are inherently distinctive, and furthermore, by virluc of the extensive online
sales and advertising under the Marks, the Marks have become well-known within
social gaming circles as a source identifier for the Zynga Poker, Mafia Wars,
FarmVille, and YoVille games (the “Games™).

26.  Zynga makes the Games available through social networking websites
and applications (collectively “Providers™), including but not limited to those
identified in Paragraph 6 above.

i
ff
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27. Zynga owns or leases the computer servers that players must access in
order to play the Games. Zynga grants players who participate in the Games a
revocable license to access its servers for the purpose of playing the Games.

28.  Zynga’s Terms of Service govern users’ play of the Games, and players
who use the Games must consent to the Terms of Service.

29.  Players who use the Games in a manner not expressly authorized by
Zynga, including without limitation in viclation of the Terms of Service, are not
authorized to participate in the Games, or to access Zynga’'s servers.

30.  When users sign up with Zynga to play the Games, they receive a certain
amount of “Virtual Currency,” including, but not limited to, chips, coins, cash and/or
points that they use to compete in the Games with other players using the Providers’
sites and/or applications. Players can increase their total amount of “Virtual
Currency™ through their play, and can also purchase “Virtual Currency” from Zynga.

31.  Players can use “Virtuai Currency” to purchase various virtual, in-game
digital iterns (“Virtual Goods”) in the Games.

32.  Zynga grants players a limited, revocable license to use the “Virtual
Currency™ or “Virtual Goods” while playing the Games, but retains sole and exclusive
ownership of the “Virtual Currency” or “Virtual Goods™ and the source code that
aillows the “Virtual Currency” or “Virtual Goods” to be used in the Games.

33. Zynga has not authorized any third party to sell the “Virtoal Currency” or
“Virtual Goods” required to play the Games.

34.  Among other things, the Terms of Service that govern users’ play of the
Games prohibit users from selling “Virtual Curtency” or “Virtual Goods™ for reaf-
wortd money or otherwise exchanging “Virtual Currency” or “Virtual Goods” for
anything of value outside the Games.

35. Defendant opcrates a website at the Internet domain name
PLAYERAUCTIONS.COM (the “Websitc” or the “Domain Name”).

CASE WO,
-5 COMPLAINT




Case 2:10-cv-02576-CBM-JC Document 1 Filed 04/08/10 Page 7 of 34
Hosteq] on www.iptrademarkattorney.com

1 36. Through the Website, without Zynga’s authorization or approval,

2 || Defendant atlows sellers to post and “seli” “Virtual Currency” or *Virtual Goods” that

3 [|users, playing the Games through the Providers’ websites and/or applications, can use

4 || to compete with other players who obtained their “Virtual Currency” or “Virtual

5 || Goods” directly from Zynga.

6 37. Defendant advertises the offers for sale and sale of the “Vigtual

7 1| Currency” and “Virtual Goods™ using the Marks.

8 38.  Defendant profits from sales of the “Virtual Currency” and “Virtuat

9 || Goods™ using the Marks.
10 39.  The Virtual Currency” and “Virtual Goods™ for use in the Games “sold”
L1 fusing Decfendant’s services are sold for real-world money, and at prices that are
12 (| substantially lower than the prices paid by users who obtain their “Virtual Currency”
13 | or “Virtual Goods” from Zynga.
14 40.  With Defendant’s knowledge, Defendant’s sellers have used the Games
15 i themselves as part of Defendants’ scheme, transferring the “Virtual Currency” or
16 || “Virtual Goods” during game play in contravention of the Games’ Terms of Service
17 | and/or security measures, and in violation of the license they received from Zynga to
18 || participate in the Games.
19 41,  Zynga has never authorized Dcfendant to use the Marks, or to advertise
20 i or assist in the sale of “Virtual Currency” or “Virtual Goods” for use in the Games,
21 [jnor has Zynga authorized Defendant or users of Defendant’s services to use the
22 1| Games to transfer “Virtual Currency” or “Virtual Goods” that are “sold” through the
23 {| Website.
24 42. Defendant and users of its Websitc advertise and sell the “Virtual
25 || Currency” and “Virtual Goods” using copyrighted images from Zynga Poker, Mafia
26 || Wars and FarmVille via the Website.
27 43. Zynga has never authorized Defendant or users of its Webstite to use
28 (limages from Zynga Poker, Mafia Wars and FarmVille computer files.
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44.  Zynga is informed and believes, and on this basis alieges, that Defendant
has infringed Zynga’s copyrights in the Zynga Poker, Mafta Wars and FarmVilie
computer games by displaying and/or reproducing images and code from the Games
without authorization from Zynga. Defendant has acted with willful disregard of
Plaintiff’s copyrights and Plaintiff has sustained substantial damage as a result thereof.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

(Federal Copyright Infringement)
(17 U.K.C. § 501)

45. Zynga repeats, realieges and incorporates each and every allegation of the
forepoing paragraphs, as though fully set forth in this cause of action.

46. At all relevant times, Zynga has owned all applicable rights, titles and
interest in and to the Zynga Poker, Mafia Wars and FarmVille games.

47. Zynga has complied in al! respects with Title 17 of the United States
Code, secured the exclusive rights and privileges in and to the above referenced
copyrights, and in compliance with the law has received from the Register of
Copyrights the appropriate certificates of registration, which constitute prima facie
evidence of the validity of the copyrights and of the facts stated in the certificates.

48. Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe Plaintiff’s copyrights
by copying, using, distributing and repreducing tmages from Zynga Poker, Mafia
Wars and FarmVille without the consent of Platntiff and in complete disregard of
Plaintiff’s exclusive rights under copyright.

49. Defendant has acted with full knowledge of Plaintiff’s rights under
copyright without regard for the damage to Plaintiff created by Defendant’s activities.
Defendant’s actions demonstrate an intentional, willful, and malicious intent to
infringe upon Plaintiff’s copyrights to the preat and irreparable injury to Plaintiff.

50. Defendant has unlawfully and wrongfully derived, and will continue o

derive, income and profits from its infringing acts.
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S1.  Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law. The said conduct of Defendant
has caused and, if not enjoined, will continue to cause irreparable damage to the rights
of Plaintiff. As a result of the Defendant’s wrongful conduct, Plaintiff is entitled to
injunctive relief and damages in an amount to be proven at trial.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(Countributery Copyright Infricgement)

52. Zynga repeats, realleges and incorporates each and every allegation of the
foregaing paragraphs, as though fully set forth in this cause of action.

53.  Numerous individuals and entities directly infringed Plaintiff’s
copyrighted works.

. 54,  Defendant induced, caused and materially contributed to the infringing
acts of others by encouraging, inducing, allowing and assisting others te reproduce
and distribute Plaintiff’s copyrighted works.

55. Defendant had actual and constructive knowledge of the infringing acts
relating to Plaintiff’s copyrighted works.

56. Defendant’s acts of infringement have been intentionai, willful, and
purposeful, in disregard of and indifferent to the rights of Plaintiff.

57. Defendant has unlawfully and wrongfully derived, and will continue to
derive, Income and profits from its infringing acts.

58.  Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law. The said conduct of Defendant
has caused and, if not enjoined, will continue to cause irreparable damage to the rights
of Plaintiff. As a result of the Defendant’s wrongful conduct, Piaintiff 1s entitled to
injunctive relief and damages in an amount to be proven at trial.

59. The acts and conduct of Defendant, as alleged above in this Complaint
constitute contributory copyright infringement.

i
i
i
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THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(Vicarious Copyright Infringement)

60.  Zynga repeats, realleges and incorporates each and every allegation of the
foregoing paragraphs, as though fufly set forth in this cause of action.

61.  Numerous individuals and entities directly infringed Plaintiff’s
copyrighted works.

62.  Defendant had the right and ability to control the infringing acts of the
individuals or entities who directly infringed Plaintiff's works.

63. Defendant obtained a direct financial benefit from the infringing
activitics of the individuals or entities who directly infringed Plaintiff’s works.

64.  Defendant’s acts of infringement have been intentional, willful, and
purposeful, in disregard of and indifferent to the rights of Plaintiff,

65.  Defendant has unlawfully and wrongfully derived, and will continue to
derive, income and profits from its infringing acts.

66.  Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law. The said conduct of Defendant
has caused and, if not enjoined, will continue to cause irreparable damage to the rights
of Plaintiff. As a result of the Defendant’s wrongful conduct, Plaintiff is entitled to
injunctive relief and damages in an amount to be proven at trial.

67.  The acts and conduct of Defendant, as alleged above in this Complaint
constitute vicarious copyright infringement

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(False Designation of Origin Regarding the Marks)
{15 U.5.C. § 1125(a))

68. Zynga repeats, realleges and incorporates each and every allegation of the

foregoing paragraphs, as though fully set forth in this cause of action.
69.  Defendant’s use of the Marks constitutes use of a false designation of
origin ot false and misleading representation in interstate commerce that wrongfully

and falsely designates, describes and represents that Defendant’s products and
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services are connected, affiliated or associated with, or authorized by Zynga, and is
iikely to cause confusion as to Defendant’s affiliation, connection or association with
Zynga, or as to the origin, sponsorship, approval or authorization of Defendant’s
products or services by Zynga in violation of 15 U.S.C, §1125(a).

70.  Defendant’s conduct as alleged herein has been undettaken willfully and
maliciously, and with full knowledge and in conscious disregard of Zynga’s rights.
Defendani’s conduct has caused and will continue to cause Zynga irreparable harm for
which there 1s no adequate remedy at law, and is also causing damage to Zynga in an
amount which cannot be accurately computed at this time but will be proven at trial.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
{California Statutory Unfair Competition)

(California Business and Professions Code § 17200, ef seq.)

71.  Zynga repeats, realleges and incorporates each and cvery allegation of the
foregoing paragraphs, as though fully set forth in this cause of action.

72, This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this claim pursuant
to the provisions of 28 U.S.C. § 1338(b), this being a claim of unfair competition
joined with a substantial and related claim under the Trademark Laws of the United
States, and under 28 U.8.C. § 1367.

73. Defendant competes directly with Zynga by “selling” “Virtual Currency”
and “Virtual Goods” that are required to play the Games.

74.  Defendant is making unauthorized commercial use of the Marks in a
deliberate, willful, intentional and wrongful attempt to trade on Zynga's goodwill,
reputation and financial investments in the Marks.

73. By reason of Defendant’s conduct as alleged herein, Defendant has
engaged in unlawful, unfair and/or fraudulent ongoing business practices in violation
of Caltfornia Business & Professions Code § 17200.

76.  Asa direct result of Defendant’s unfair competition with regard to the

Marks, Defendant has unlawfully acquired, and continues to acquire on an ongoing
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basis, an unfair competitive advantage and has engaged, and continues to engage in,
wrongful business conduct to Defendant’s monetary advantage and to the detriment of
Zynga.

77.  Defendant’s tllegal and unfair business practices are continuing, and
injunctive relief pursuant to California Business and Professions Code § 17203 is
necessary to prevent and restrain further violations by Defendant.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Common Law Trademark Iafringement of the Marks)

78. Zyngatepeats, realleges and incorporates each and every allegation of the
foregoing paragraphs, as though fuily set forth in this cause of action.

79.  This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this claim pursuant
to the provisions of 23 U.S.C. § 1338(b), this being a claim of infringement joined
with a substantial and related claim under the Trademark Laws of the United States,
and under 28 US.C. § 1367,

80.  Defendant’s unauthorized use of the Marks constitutes trademark
infringement and is likely to cause confusion, deception and mistake among the
consuming public and trade as to the source of, and authorization for the products
and/or services sold and/or advertised by Defendant in violation of the common law of
the State of California.

81. Defendant’s conduct as alieged herein has been undertaken willfully and
maliciously, and with full knowledge and in conscious disrcgard of Zynga’s rights.

82.  As well as harming the public, Defendant’s conduct as alleged herein has
caused and will continue to cause Zynga irreparable harm for which there is no
adequate remedy at law, and is also causing damage to Zynga in an amount which
cannot be accurately computed at this time but will be proven at trial.
ff
i
i
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SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(California Common Law Passing Off and Usfair Competition)

83. Zyngarepeats, realleges and incorporates each and every allegation of the
foregoing paragraphs, as though fully set forth in this cause of action.

84.  This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this claim pursuant
to the provisions of 28 U.S.C. § 1338(D), this being a claim of unfair competition
joined with a substantial and related claim under the Trademark Laws of the United
States, and under 28 U.8.C. § 1367.

85, By virtue of its conduct as alleged herein, Defendant has engaged and is
engaging in unfair competition and passing off under the common law of the State of
California.

86. As well as harming the public, Defendant’s conduct as alieged herein has
caused and will continue to cause Zynga irreparable harm for which there is no
adequate remedy at law, and is also causing damage to Zynga in an amount which
cannot be accurately computed at this time but will be proven at trial.

87. Defendant’s actions were undertaken intentionally to obtain an unfair
advantage over Zynga and in conscious disregard of Zynga's rights, and were
malicious, oppressive and/or fraudulent. Zynga requests punitive or e'xemplary
damages pursuant to California Civil Code § 3294(a) in an amount sufficient to punish
and deter Defendant and to make an cxample of Defendant.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Intentional Interference with Contractual Relations)

88, Zynga repeats, realleges and incorporates each and every allegation of the
foregoing paragraphs, as though fully set forth in this cause of action.

89.  This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this claim pursuant
to the provisions of 28 U.S.C. § 1367.

90. Zynga has existing valid contracts with users of the Games.

CASE N
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91.  Zyngais informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that Defendant
has knowledge of those contracts, and that Defendant has acted intentionally to induce
a breach or disruption of those contractual relationships by “selling” “Virtual
Currency™ and “Virtual Goods” for the Games without authorization, at prices that are
substantially lower than the prices paid by users who obtain their “Virtual Currency”
and “Virtual Goods” from Zynga, and by distributing “Virtual Goods” and “Virtual
Goods” to users in a manner prohibited by the Terms of Service.

92,  Defendant’s actions as alleged herein have caused actual disruption or
breach of Zynga’s contractual relationships with individual users.

93. Defendant’s conduct as alleged herein has caused and will continue to
cause Zynga irreparable harm for which there is no adequate remedy at law, and is
also causing damage to Zynga in an amount which cannot be accurately computed at
this time but will be proven at trial.

REQUEST FOR RELIEF
Zynga requests that this Court:

A.  Enter a permanent injunction enjoining Defendant and its officers,
directors, agents, employees, representatives and all persons or entities acting in
concert or participation with Defendant from accessing or using Zynga’s computer
servers, including without limitation the Games or any other games or applications
that Zynga makes available, for any purpose whatsoever;

B.  Enter a permanent injunction ¢njoining Defendant and its officers,
directors, agents, employees, representatives and all persons or entities acting in
concert or participation with Defendant from infringing any of Zynga’s trademarks,
including without limitation using the Marks ZYNGA, MAFIA WARS,
FARMVILLE, and YOVILLE and/or confusingly similar misspellings or variations
thereof, alone or in combination with any other words or phrases, in a manner that is
likely to cause confusion with respect to the Marks or with respect to Zynga's

approval or authorization of Defendant’s actions;
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C. LEntera pénnanent injunction enjoining Defendant and its officers,
directors, agents, employees, representatives and all persons or entities acting in
concert or participation with Defendant from accessing, playing, or otherwise
participating in the Games, or in any other game or application that Zynga makes
available;

D.  Enter a permanent injunction enjoining Defendant and its officers,
directors, agents, employees, representatives and all persons or entities acting in
concert or participation with Defendant from buying, sclling, offering for sale,
advertising, exchanging, trading or otherwise dealing in “Virtual Currency” and
“Virtual Goods” for use in the Games, as well as any currency or items used in any
game or application that Zynpa makes availabie;

E.  Enter a permanent injunction enjoining Defendant and its officers,
directors, agents, employees, representatives and all persons or entities acting in
concert or participation with Defendant from aiding, abetting, contributing to, or
otherwise assisting with or benefiting from buying, sclling, offering for sale,
advertising, exchanging, trading or otherwise dealing in “Virtual Currency” and
“Virtual Goods” for use in the Games, as well as any currency or items used in any
game or application that Zynga makes available;

F.  Enter a permanent injunction requiring Defendant and its officers,
directors, agents, employees, representatives and all persons or entities acting in
concert or participation with Defendant to immediately cease any conduct suggesting
or tending to suggest that any products or services they advertise or offer for sale are
directly or indirectly sponsored or approved by, or affiliated with Zynga;

(.  Enter a permanent injunction enjoining and restratning Defendant and its
officers, directors, agents, employees, representatives and all persons ot entities acting
in conceri or participation with Defendant, from aiding, abetting, contributing to, or
otherwise assisting with or benefiting fmrﬁ using, displaying, exhibiting, reproducing,
distnibuting, selling or offering for sale, any product or service featuring images and

CASE NO.
14 - COMPLAINT
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code from the Zynga Poker, Mafia Wars and FarmVille computer files, without prior
authonzation from Zynga;

H.  Enter a permanent injunction enjoining and restraining Defendant and its
officers, directors, agents, employees, representatives and all persons or entities acting
in concert or participation with Defendant, from using, displaying, exhibiting,
reproducing, distributing, seliing or offering for sale, any product or service featuring
images and ¢ode from the Zynga Poker, Mafia Wars and FarmVille computer files,
without prior authorization from Zynga,

L. Enter a permanent injunction enjoining and restraining Defendant and its
officers, dircctors, agents, employees, representatives and all persons or entities acting
in concert or participation with Defendant, from effecting assignments or transfers,
forming new entities or associations or utilizing any other device for the purpose of
circumventing or otherwise avoiding the prohibitions set forth in Requests for Relicf
{A-H) above;

1. Enter a finding that Defendant’s actions were willful, deliberate, and
malicious;

K.  Enter a finding that Defcndant’s actions were malicious, oppressive
and/er fraudulent;

L.  Award Zynga damages in an amount to be proven at trial that will be
trebled pursuant to the applicable statute, as well as pre-judgment and past-judgment
interest;

M. As to Plaintiff’s claims for federal copyright infringement, that Plaintiff
be awarded damages for Defendant’s copyright infringement as: (i) Defendant’s
profits derived from its unfawful infringement of the Zynga Poker, Mafia Wars and
FarmVille computer files; or (11) statutory damages for each act of infringement in an
amount provided by law, as set forth in 17 U.S.C. § 504, at Plaintiff’s election before
the entry of a final judgment, together with prejudgment and post-judgment interest;

CASCNO.
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N.  Enter an order, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1118 and other applicable law,

directing Defendant to deliver for destruction all products in its possession or under its

control that infringe Zynga’s intellectual property rights;

0.  Award Zynga punitive damages in an amount sufficient to punish and
deter Defendant;

P.  Enter an award of attorneys’ fees and costs; and

Q.  Award any such other and further relief as this Court deems just and

proper.

PLAINTIFF ZYNGA HEREBY DEMANDS A TRIAL BY JURY.

Dated: April 8, 2010 By = M

. ——— -
Dennis L. Wilson
Keats McFarland & Wilson LLP
Attorneys for Plaintiff
ZYNGA GAME NETWORK INC.

CASE NG.
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1 DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAIL
2 Plaintiff Zynga Game Network Inc. hereby demands a trial by jury on all issues
3 i for which a jury trial may be had.

Dated: April 8, 2010 Respectfully submitted,
KEATS MCFARLAND & WILSON LLP

e A

Dennis L. Wilson
{0 Attumi{ for Plaintift
ZYNGA GAME NETWORK INC.
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Exhibit 1

Zynga Game Network fnc. v. Playerauctions.com

Case No.
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United States Patent and Trademark Office

Homy | Sita Tndax [Search{FAQ | Cloaanry | Gustes | Cantacrs | sluaimeta | o8 smects | Mews | Help

Trademarks > Trademark Electronic Search System (TESS)

TESS was fast updaled on Wed Apr 7 04:03:55 EOT 2016

i sraeas fassicn sis | IS SEl ( Lise the "Back™ button of the Intemet Browser Lo return to TESS})

Mzynga

Word M ark TrHGA

Goods and Sorvices [ 009. WS 021 (23 025 036 034, G & 5: Dowrdgadzble camputer game softwars lar usa on wisless devices and computers, FIRST
UBE: 2000600, FIRST USE INCOMMERCE : 23070800

|2 041, U5 100 101 107, G & 5: Enfarfainmen! sendees, namety, proniding an-line compuler games. FIRST USE: 20070600, FIRST
USE I8N COMVERCE: 20071600

Mark Drawing Code  {1) DESIGH PLUS WORDS, LETTERS, ANDAOR MUMBERS
Dusign Sazech Sode 03.01.07 - Nogs displayed in sihouvetles aras shadows

Trademark Search
Facllty Classification GROT-AM Exaggerated dagiction af am animal

Codle
Sorial Humb-er TI684104
Filing Crata March I, 2008

Current Fliag Basis 1A
Orignal Fling Basis 1A

Publizhed For

Caposition Juby T, 25

Reqistration Numbar 385749

ktarnatdonal

Resqxtratian Murmbar 1074571

Reglatratian Dam Seplember 22, 20040

Orarrror [REGIS TRANT) Zynga Game Metwork Inc. CORPORATION DELAWARE 365 Varmort Steat San Francisoo CALIFORMLA 34103

Aftormey of Recaord  Jahn M. Kim

Déneription of Mark  Colar is naf claimad as 4 fesiure of e mane The mank consists of 3 dog pexl o ZYNGA,
Type of Mark TRAGEMARK, SERYICE MaRK

Ragiater PRINGIPAL

LivaDead kdicator  LIVE

|-HOME | A TE HeDeEX ] RO | slnAMEST | HELP | PRIYACT POLCY

pHsr !
PAGE __I8_ __*
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Zynga Game Network Inc. v. Plaverauctions.com
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Type of Work: Yisual Material

Registration Number / Dake:
YAODO1448268 F 2008-10-01

Application Title: Eynga Texas Hold Em.
Title: Zynga Texas Hold Em.
Cescriptions Electronic file [eService]

Copyright Claimant:
Zynga Networks, Inc.

Date of Creation: 2007

Date of Publication:
2007-09-01

Maticn of First Publicacion:
United States

Authorship on Application:
ayngsa Wekworks, Inc., employer for hice:; Domicile: United
States; Citizenship: United States. Authorship: 2-D
artwork, Lext.

Pre—existing Material:
2-T0 artwork, bext.

Bazis of Claim: 2-D artwork, Cext.

Hames : Zynga Networks, Inc.

ARk B o b ok b ok ah ok ab o ok b b o R IR B IR R SRR T B o
The Library of Longress

United States Copyright Office

101 Tndependence bhve,, S.8.

Washington, D.C. 240559-%000

202-707-30040
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Zynga Game Network Inc. v. Playerauctions.com
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Type of Work: Computer File

Begistration Number / Date:
THuQQ1lE1188% / 2009-08-20Q

Application Title: Texas Hold "Em Software.
Title: [Ho title on deposit.]
Description: Computer Cods.

Copyright Claimant:
Zynga Same Network Tnc.

Date of Creaktion: 2008

Authorship on bpplication:
tynga Game Network Inc., employer tor hire; Domicile:
United States. Authorship: computer program.

Frevious Registration:
2008, VA 1-649-268.

Pre-existing Matcrial:
Two Dimensicnal Artwork in Beg. Mo, VA 1-649-264; No

claim
L5 made to approximately 10% of sofrtware licensed o
claimant by e-Channel Matworks, Inc.

Basiz of Tlaim: computer software.

Wame s ; Zynga Game Metwork Inc.

+++++t e AR R AR R R R R R
The Library of Congress

United States Copyright Office

101 Independence Rve., S.E.

Washington, D.C. 20559-6000

202-707-3000

[ e S
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Zynga Game Network Inc. v. Playerauctions.com
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Type of Work: Computer File

Registration Humber / Date:
THO008511230 / 2009-04-0%9

Applicaticn Title: Mafia Wars.
Title: [Mo title on deposit]
Description: Electronic file (eService)

Copyright Claimant:
gynga Game Network 1lnc.

Date of Creation: 2009

(ate of Publicaticn:
2009-02-10

Matign of First Publication:
United Statcs

Buthership on Applicabign:
Zynga Game Network Ine., employer for hire:; Domicile:
United 5tates; Citizenship: United States. Aukharship:
computer program.

Rlternmabive Title on application:

Dope Wars
Copyright Nole: Z.0. correspondence.
Names: fyhga Game Network Inc.

Fretttrrdtdddbbbd bbbttt b R R AR AL
The Lihrary of Congress

United States Copyright Office

111 Tadependence Ave., 5.E.

Washingcon, D.C. 20559-8000

202-707-3000

]
BT
Sl e TR
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Type of Work: Computer File

Registration Number / Date:
TXul0i1610517 / 2009-0B-06

Application Title: Farmville.
Title: Farmville.
Bescription: Electronic file {cService)

Copyright Claimant:
Zynga Game Network Inc., Transfer: By writbten agreement.

Date of Creation: 2009

Authorship on Application:
Aynga Game Network Inc., employer for hire; Domicilo:
United Slates; Citizenship: United States. Actheorship:
CoOmMpuUter progran.
MyMiniLifc, Inc. {aukhor of angnymous contributbion),
amployer for nice; Domicile: United States:
Citizenship:
Unitaed 3tates. Aulhorcship: computer proogram.

Hames : dynga Gamc Nobtwork Ine.
MyMiniLife, Inc.

AR R S AR R R
The Library of Congross

United States Copyright Qffice

101 Independence Ave., S.E.

Hashingteon, B.C. 20559-60040

A0ZF-707-3000

B o5
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Zynga Game Network fnc. v. Playerauctions.com

Case No.
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Type of Wark: Compoter File

Registration Wumber / Date:
TXOQO&9E01TL F 2009-08-10

Adpplicaticn Title: FarmVille HTMI. Software.
Titlo: Farm¥ille IITMI. Software.
Description: Frint Material.

Copyright Claimant:
Zynga Game Nebtwork Inc.

Date of Creation: 2009

ate of Publicaticn:
2009-0&5-149

Mation of ¥irst Fublication:
Mitited States

BuLthorship on Applicaticn:

Zynga Game Hetwork Inc., employer Eor hire; Domicile:
United States; Citizesmship: United States. Authorship:

compubcr program.

Pre-existing Material:

compuber program, "Original HMyMinilLife HTML Software™

lrights transferred bto claimant)

Bazis of Claim: computer program, Modification of exizting soltware and

addition of new sofltware.

Copyright Wota: C.0. correspondence.
HNames: &ynga Game Networck Inc.
SRR L e B L L L L R A A SR E e

Tha Library of Congress

United States Copyright Office
121 Independence Awve., 5.E.
Washington, D.C. 20559-6000
202=-T07=-3000

B

PAGE _
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

NOTICE OF ASS1GNMENT TO UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE FOR DISCOVERY

This case has been assigned to Distnct Judge Consuelo B. Marshall and the assigned
discovery Magisirate Judge is Jacqueline Chooljian.

The ase number on all documents filed with the Court should read as follows:

Cv10- 2576 CBM {JCx)

Pursuant to General Order 05-07 of the United States District Court for the Central
District of California, the Magistrate Judgc has been designated to hear discovery related
motions.

All discovery related motions should be noticed on the calendar of the Magistrate Judge

NOTICE TO COUNSEL

A copy of this notice must be served with the summens and complaint on alf defendants (if & removal acltion is
fitad, a capy of this nolice must e senved on aff plaintits).

Subsequenl documents must be fled at the following location:

[X] Western Division [[] Southern Division [ ] Eastern Division
312 N. Spring 5t, Rm. G-§ 411 West Fourth 5t., Rm. 1-053 3470 Twelfth 5t., Rm. 134
Los Angeles, CA ${J12 Santa Ana, CA 92701-4516 Riverside, CA 92501

Failura ta e at the proper kocation will result In your decuments being raumed to you.

CW-18 (D305} NOTICE GOF ASSIGNMENT TO UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDRGE FOR DISCOVERY
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ALY 440 [Rew. 1208) Surmons in 8 Civil A¢tion

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Central District of California

ZYMGA GAME NETWORK INC.,
a Delaware corparation,

Biaintiff

¥

FLAYERAUCTIONS.COM,
an unknown business enlity,

Defendant

O 10- 2576 CBA (0

M e e a M e

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

Ter: fDefendan s npme and getedress) PLAYERAUCTIONS COM
11281 W Olympic Blvd., Suite 337
Loz Angeles, Ca S0064

A lawsuit has been filed apainst yvou.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day vou received ity — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R, Civ,
P 12{aN2ior{3}  wou musl serve om the plaintiffan answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federa! Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motien must be served on the plainti{T or plaintills atlermey,
whose name and address are:  Dennis L. Wilson, Esqg..

KEATS McFARLAND & WILSON LLP,
9720 Wilshire Boulevard, Penthouse Suite,
Bevarly Hilis, Califormia 890212

If vou fail to respond, judgment by defaolt will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
¥ou alsp must Ale your answer or moetion with the court.

CLERK GF COURT

Datg; E}jf':_bg - (D _ C;Q}AL«— d
' Senamre af Clerk or Depuny Cler
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[ (@) FLAKENTIFFS {Chedk bux if you are cepresenting youesedf ()

IYNGA GAME NETWORE, a Delaware Carpacation

DEFENDANTS
PLAYERAUCTIONS COM, a0 wunknown fasipess enlily

(b} Anoeneys (Fim Hame, Address and Telephone Numbser, 17 vou are 1epresenting

vawrself, provide same. }

Feas MecFarland & Wilson LLP (SEE ATTACHED ATTORNEYS LIST)

0720 Wilshire Bodlevard, Penthouse Soite
Beverly Hitls, Califormia 20212

Atgmeys {[I Kxown)

11. BASIS OF AIRISDICTION (Place an X in one bax anly.)

O 1 US Govemment Plaintiff

[12 U5 Government Defendant 04 Chversity (Indicate Citizenship

73

Federal Question {1E.S.
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HI. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIFAL PARTIES - For Diversity Cases Cnly
{Place an X in oqee bax for plainnl® and one For defendant. )

FTF

of Business in this State

Inoprperated and Prencipal Place ] 5

LY DEF

Chd

Ox

of Buginess in Another Stace
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Litigation Magistrate Judpe
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¥I[{a). TDENTICAL CASES: Has this action been previously filed ia this ciart and dismizsed, remanded or closed? ®No B ves
[f ya=s, list case numbens)

VE(b). RELATED CASES: Have any cases boen proviously filed in this court that are related o te present case? le:r O Yes
INyes, 15k case number(s).

Civil cases are deemed related il a previously Giked cace and the presend case:
(Check a1l boxes that apply] [JA. Arize from the s or closely related transactens, kappenings, or events, o
O B. Call for determination of (ke same o substantislty refated or sirular questions of law and facr, of
M. For other reasons wouid entail substantial duplication of Jabar if eard by different judges, or
Or Involve the sams patent, tradkamand or copyright, and one of the Fzctors identified above in 4, b ot ¢ 3lsa i3 present.

DL YENLE: {When completing the following informatian, use an wdditsonal sheat if necessary.}

{8) List the County in this District Califenia County guiskds of this Districy, Suate ifather than Califamia; er Foreign Country, in which EACH manied plaintifl resides
O Check haee il the govermment, ils ageacies or smpldyend s 8 named plaintlt’ 14 this bax 15 chackad g 1o item ().

County n this Disirict:* Califocnia Couaty outside of this Dhistrict, Stzte, iF other than Calilomia; oF Forsigc Country

ZYNGA GAME NETWORE INC., San Francisca County

(b1 Lize the Cownty in this Dustct; California County cutside of this Districs, Stale if other Lhun Califenia; of Foreign Couniry, in which EACH named defendant resedes.

O Check here iftdhe: govemnmsnt its agencics or smplovees is 2 named defendant 17 this box is checked, g 1 Wem (5.
County 0 s 1Nigenice ™ Califorma County owiside «f this Distict; Stae, il other than Califomia; or Foreign Country

PLAYERAUCTIONE COM, Los Angeles County

{c} List the Counry in this Bistrict, Califemia County outside of this District; Stats it other than Calilomia, of Foreign Couwnnry, in which EACH claim aresc.
Mate: 1o land condemoation cases, vse the location of the tracl of laod invelved,

Cowmy in this Destrict:* Califemiz County sulzide of this Distriet, State, iCodher than Caltoma; o1 Fotagn Coumy

San Francigen County

* Laos Angeles, Orange, Sao Bernardioe, Riverside, ¥eaturs, 3anis Harbara, or San Luls Obispa Connlies
i 5, u5e this location of Fland inyoived

AN ow Pprnl §,2010

X, SIGHATURE OF ATTORMNEY (DR PRO PER):

vy sl
Matlee 1o ConnselParties:  The CY-71{15-44) Civil Cover Sheet and the informatien conkingd herein azither replace nor suplement the filing and sérvice of pleadings
orather papees a5 Tequiced by law This ferm, approves by the Indicial Conference of the United States in Septembar {974, i8 required purgtant i Lecal Rule 3-1 is ot filed
but 1z used by the Clerk ol the Curt for the purpose of stetistics, venue and initating the civil acket sheet. {For moce detailed instructions, se¢ separate instnsclions sheet )

Key to Statelical codes itlating by Sovizl Security Cases.
Natre of Suit Code  Abbrevintion Substantive Statemeat of Cause of Acllon

85 HLA All claims for health teurmnce benefits (Medicare) uoder Tille 18, Part A, of the Secial Ssconty Act, as amendied.
Alzo, include claims by hospitals, skilled nursing facilities, sto., fercartliicanon 43 providees of services under the
program. (42 US.C. LYFSEFb)

i) BL Al claings fer “Black Lung” bencfits under Title 4, Pan B, of the Federal Coal Min: Health and Safety Actof 1997
[3FULEC 92

BA3 DOWC All claims filed by inswied workers for dizsabiliny insurance benelits under Title 2 of the Socual Security Acy, 15
amended, plus all claitms fled for child's insurence benefits based on disabilicy. (42 US.C 405g)

a1 DWW All claims fted for widows of widowers ingurance bensfits based an disability onder Tille 2 of the Secial Securiry
Act, as amended, (42 115 C. 40Hg))

Bh4 55 ANl claims fn supgplermantal security income payments hased upon disabilivy Mled undec Title 16 of the Social Seourity
Act, a8 amended.

265 R&I All claims for retirensent (old ape) and servivors benefits wader Titke 2 of the Social Security Act, as amended. (42

LSO g
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